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Message from the Chairperson 
Serge Voloschenko OAM

It is my great pleasure to present to the members and communities of the Ethnic 
Communities Council of Queensland Ltd (ECCQ) the Annual Report for this financial 
year ending June 2016.  

This has been a special year for ECCQ as we celebrate 40 years of working alongside 
Queensland’s culturally and linguistically diverse (CALD) communities to seek equity 
and access for all people of all backgrounds. I consider myself incredibly fortunate to 
have been part of ECCQ’s journey over these years. 

I have seen ECCQ’s work firsthand contribute to the development of multicultural 
policy and strengthen ethnic community associations. We continue to develop 
and deliver cultural awareness training to support diverse workplaces, we support 
employment pathways and we have advocated for better health outcomes. We 
have become the experts in the delivery of culturally inclusive health education and 
services. We continue to advocate for greater participation of CALD people in all 
aspects of society. These are just a few examples of ECCQ’s work and I am proud of 
what ECCQ has achieved. I can say with confidence that Queensland is a much more 
harmonious place today than it was 40 years ago.  

I also acknowledge the enormous contribution made by my predecessors over the 
last 40 years. The dedication and visionary leadership has steered this organisation 
through numerous challenges to meet the needs of our members and communities. 
The great legacy of ECCQ will be carried on by an energised and strategically focused 
leadership team.

In January 2016, we welcomed Garry Page to the position of Chief Executive Officer 
of ECCQ Ltd. This was a very timely appointment as we are working on internal 
efficiencies between ECCQ Multicultural Services and our incredibly successful aged 
care service arms, Diversicare and Berlasco Court Caring Centre. Moving forward our 
divisions will work much closer together under Garry’s leadership.  

In partnership with the Board and our Senior Leadership Team, Garry will also lead 
the strategic direction of ECCQ into the future, develop a strong governance and 
leadership structure, revitalise policy and advocacy and member relations and assist 
our divisions to meet their full potential. Garry has been well received by all levels of 
government and has been warmly welcomed by members of CALD communities at 
many community events and meetings. Garry has played a key role in multicultural 
Queensland for many years and we are grateful to have him contribute his expertise 
and energy to ECCQ.  

This year the ECCQ Board of Directors and the Senior Leadership Team held a three 
day strategic planning workshop, facilitated by Pino Migliorino, Hon President of the 
Federation of Ethnic Communities Council of Australia (FECCA) and Managing Director 
of the Cultural Perspectives Group. The workshop allowed our team to work through 
challenges we currently face and set goals for a five year plan that is representative of 
a diverse range of views and perspectives. 
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Message from the Chairperson 
Serge Voloschenko OAM

The Strategic Plan 2016-2020 outlines the 
vision and purpose of ECCQ as the peak 
body for multiculturalism in Queensland and 
as the state expert for culturally appropriate 
health education, information and services. 
It summarises our strengths as an organisation 
along with some key challenges we face. It also 
puts forth strategies to meet these challenges 
and sets goals that we will work hard to achieve. 
The plan demonstrates our ongoing commitment 
to CALD communities in Queensland and signifies 
our willingness to change and adapt to the 
changing circumstances. 

It was another challenging year, and yet it 
is still an honour and a great pleasure to be 
Chairperson of an organisation that throughout 
its history has strived to meet the needs of CALD 
communities to the best of our capabilities. 

ECCQ commends the Queensland Government 
for passing the Multicultural Recognition 
Act 2016, which recognises the benefits of 
multiculturalism and formally acknowledges the 
invaluable asset diversity brings to our collective 
future. It is another legislative milestone in 
Queensland’s multicultural history.

The Act also established the Multicultural 
Queensland Advisory Council to advise the 
Minister of Multicultural Affairs Grace Grace.

I am honoured to have recently been appointed 
to the Council along with fellow ECCQ 
Director Elijah Buol. I look forward to providing 
contemporary advice to the government on 
the needs and aspirations of people from CALD 
backgrounds.

We remain committed to our vision that 
everyone, no matter their background, should 
be able to contribute to and participate in all 
aspects of society. We also remain committed 
to collaborating with members, stakeholders 
and government to support and advocate for 
the needs, interests and contributions of CALD 
communities in Queensland. 

I would like to thank the ECCQ Board of Directors 
for devoting countless hours to furthering the 
mission of ECCQ. I also thank them for their 
guidance and support this year; it is my privilege 
to serve on the team. 

I would like to extend my thanks and 
appreciation to ECCQ, Diversicare and Berlasco 
Court Caring Centre leadership team, staff 
and volunteers for their loyalty, enthusiasm, 
dedication, hard work and achievements.  I 
would also like to thank staff members who 
shared their personal stories of resilience and 
determination in this Annual Report. 

On behalf of ECCQ Ltd, I submit this Annual 
Report to you. 

“We remain committed to our vision that everyone, no matter their 
background, should be able to contribute to and participate in all aspects 
of society.” 

5

Minister Grace, third from the left, with ECCQ Directors (left to right): Alton Budd, Serge Voloschenko, Yasmin Khan, Alex Daniloff, 
Michael Yau, Freda Valassakis, Elijah Buol, Company Secretary Kerry Xynias and CEO Garry Page at an ECCQ hosted breakfast 
held at Parliament House  on 5 April 2016.
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Message from the CEO 
Garry Page 

I am honoured to present the 2015-2016 Annual Report, my first as the Chief Executive 
Officer of ECCQ. I am delighted to present the significant achievements we’ve made 
this year and the goals we’ve set as an organisation. 

At the outset I would like to thank the Board of Directors, Serge Voloschenko, Michael 
Yau, Yasmin Khan, Alex Daniloff, Alton Budd, Samuel Miszkowski, Amar Khan, Elijah 
Buol, Freda Valassakis and Evelyn Saragossi for their part in appointing me to this 
critical position. I would also like to thank Kerry Xynias for her contribution as Company 
Secretary. The time since my appointment has gone quickly and much has been 
achieved. 

I have thoroughly enjoyed joining such a dedicated and motivated team committed 
to achieving our shared vision, purpose and goals. Our team is a key strength and 
I would like to thank particularly our Chairperson, Serge Voloschenko as well as 
the Board of Directors, the Senior Leadership Team and our staff for their energy, 
enthusiasm and dedication. Our achievements and outcomes laid out in this report 
bears testament to their hard work.

40th year 

It’s a pivotal time in ECCQ’s history as we celebrate our 40th year as the peak body for 
multiculturalism in Queensland. We are committed to leading the development and 
participation of multicultural communities in Queensland through advocacy, support, 
services and capacity building. ECCQ’s Board of Directors, staff and members all 
share our vision of a society whereby people from CALD backgrounds are supported 
to maximise their potential and in which their productive contribution to Queensland is 
recognised.  

Strategic Plan 

We launched ECCQ’s Strategic Plan 2016-2020 in April 2016. We will use the plan as a 
guide as we develop policies, programs and projects and as a measure of our success. 
I have thoroughly enjoyed working closely with Serge and the Board of Directors and 
our dedicated staff members as we implement strategies to deliver positive outcomes 
for CALD communities across Queensland.  

Our signature events were a great success this year. To name a few: ECCQ’s breakfast 
with Minister of Multicultural Affairs, Grace Grace was attended by 150 people, our 
Healthy Liver Day event attracted over 200 community leaders, our Multicultural 
Advisory Service Cultural Briefing Roadshow was a resounding success with over 300 
attendees. 

Community engagement 

ECCQ’s committed to community engagement across all our programs in our divisions. 
Our community leadership program was delivered to 68 participants from 17 new and 
emerging communities. Our Community Work Skills Project assisted 31 students from 
CALD backgrounds to complete Certificate III in Aged Care and Individual Support 
and at the end June, many students had either found employment or embarked on a 
higher education pathway. 

6
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Message from the CEO 
Garry Page 

Our CALD Women’s Engagement Project is an 
example of participatory advocacy as a tool 
to better understand community needs and to 
seek community led solutions to inform policy 
recommendations. We listened to the needs of 
84 women from CALD backgrounds and put forth 
recommendations for program initiatives that 
respond to the identified needs and challenges. 

West End (WE) Connect Activities Centre for 
CALD seniors continues to develop social 
activities in consultation with the many 
community members that participate. 
Approximately 300 people from many cultural 
backgrounds attend the monthly activities. 

Cultural awareness  

This year, we also leveraged our expertise 
and internal capacities to develop a cultural 
awareness training and consulting service 
for government, non-profit organisations and 
businesses. This service is delivered by Diversicare.  

Multicultural health services 

Health literacy and preventative care 
continues to be a high priority area for ECCQ. 
In this financial year, our Hepatitis, HIV and STI 
and chronic disease health workshops were 
attended by over a thousand people from CALD 
backgrounds. 

Our Multicultural Advisory Service has conducted 
information sessions to over 2,000 people across 
Queensland and our Partners in Culturally 
Appropriate Care Program delivered community 
information sessions to over 1,200 people from 
CALD backgrounds.

Our culturally inclusive health services remain 
unparalleled in Queensland. Diversicare 
continues to offer high quality care to people 
from CALD backgrounds in their homes, often 
matching up the person with a carer from 
the same CALD background. Berlasco Court 
continues to be the only recognised residential 
aged care provider in the state to focus on 
cultural inclusiveness alongside excellence in 
care. 

Member and Stakeholder Survey

ECCQ sought to hear from a range of individuals 
and organisations connected to ECCQ in April 
2016 through a Member and Stakeholder Survey. 

Respondents to the survey ranged from valued 
members to participants of ECCQ’s training 
and education programs to individuals from 
government and non-government organisations 
with a stake in multicultural Queensland. 

The survey was designed to better understand 
how ECCQ’s members and stakeholders view 
the organisation, particularly focusing on what 
we do well and what we could do better to 
meet the shifting needs of CALD individuals and 
communities. 

The survey responses indicated that there is a 
need for increased community engagement on 
behalf of our CALD members, which we will strive 
to meet moving forward.

Responses also indicated that ECCQ has 
maintained a strong reputation as the peak body 
for multicultural affairs, is valued as a member-
based organisation and is well positioned to 
advocate for the needs and interests of CALD 
communities. 

ECCQ remains committed to working alongside 
our members and communities, our stakeholders, 
our consumers and with government to ensure 
better outcomes for CALD Queenslanders.

Capital Grant  

We welcomed the announcement of a 
$10 million capital grant from the Australian 
Government Department of Health as part of 
the Aged Care Approval Round to redevelop 
Berlasco Court. This presents a huge opportunity 
for ECCQ as the funds will allow Berlasco Court to 
increase capacity from 60 to 108 beds. We will, in 
new premises, continue to provide exceptional 
and high quality care. 
 
Thanks 

My thanks to Athena Ermides, General 
Manager of Berlasco Court and Vivienne 
McDonald, General Manager of Diversicare 
for their leadership of our Community Care 
and Residential Care divisions. My thanks to our 
leaders, managers and staff who collectively 
make such a wonderful contribution to ECCQ. 
Thanks for the opportunity to work closely with 
you and our communities; I look forward to the 
journey ahead.

“We are committed to leading the development and participation of 
multicultural communities in Queensland through advocacy, support, 
services and capacity building.”

7
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This has certainly been a big year with the announcement that Berlasco Court Caring 
Centre was successful in 2015 Aged Care Approvals Round (ACAR) in March 2016. We 
received a capital grant of $10 million for 48 additional places.

Jane Prentice, Federal Member for Ryan and the Assistant Minister for Disability Services 
and Ken Wyatt, the Assistant Minister for Health and Aged Care visited Belasco Court in 
March to formally announce the funding to staff, residents and their families. They spent 
a few hours talking to residents and staff and the visit was enjoyed by all.

This means that ECCQ will be able to move forward with plans to rebuild Berlasco Court 
and there have been a number of consultations and meetings to date to commence 
the early planning stages for the project.

It is too early to provide concrete updates for the project, however so far the 
agreement has been signed with the Commonwealth Department of Health, 
consultations have been held to determine a project manager who will plan, design 
and manage the building project of the new facility, and options are being worked 
through with a range of providers to plan the possible relocation of residents during 
construction. It really is a case of ‘watch this space’. When more concrete plans are 
available meetings will be held with all stakeholders to ensure that everyone involved is 
consulted with and the process is open and transparent.

A number of staff were recognised at the end of year celebration. Five staff members 
had already received their badge for 20+ years of service last year, and one staff 
member received his 10+ years of service badge. In addition, three staff members 
received awards that were nominated by their peers in five different categories. 

We are very proud of the work carried out by the staff here and wish to take this 
opportunity to commend them all on their efforts. Three long standing staff members 
retired this year and significant celebrations were held to thank them for their hard 
work and dedication and wish them well in their retirement.

We would also like to thank our volunteers for their outstanding work throughout the 
year. We receive wonderful support from the members of the Australasian Hellenic 
Educational Progressive Association as well as the Polish community and we are very 
grateful for all that they do.

Another highlight this year was the live broadcasting of the afternoon program ABC 
Drive from Berlasco Court. The program featured a range of discussions and interviews 
on the current issues for aged care. This was a wonderful program that highlighted the 
success of Berlasco Court and all those associated with the ABC and this program are 
to be commended.

Another very noteworthy event was a birthday party for one of our beloved residents, 
Mr Theodore Raymond who turned 100 in July 2016. He was also honoured by a visit 
by our Federal Member for Ryan, Jane Prentice. Jane came for morning tea and 
presented Theo with a lovely gift.

Message from Berlasco Court 
General Manager  
Athena Ermides

8
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Message from Berlasco Court 
General Manager  
Athena Ermides

As the community services division of ECCQ, Diversicare provides health services in 
Brisbane, Mt Gravatt, Sunshine Coast, Townsville, Cairns, Toowoomba and Gold Coast. 

Diversicare is committed to achieving our vision by providing quality services to people 
from CALD backgrounds in the community and responding to their changing needs. In 
addition to direct consumer services we also offer cultural awareness training to aged 
care and community care organisations and to CALD communities. We collaborate 
with government and non-government sectors to ensure all Queenslanders have 
access to culturally appropriate community care.   

We are committed to valuing and respecting our consumer’s right to choose to live in 
their own homes for as long as they are able with the lifestyle choices they require. We 
pride ourselves on assisting people to achieve their goals with optimum independence.  
Diversicare works within a strength-based care framework and our vision, values, 
policies and support tools directly facilitate active engagement of our consumers and 
their families. 

Our coordinators and home care workers have extensive experience delivering 
Consumer Directed Care (CDC) drawn from the relationships we have with our 
consumers under government funded programs. 

We have a comprehensive portfolio of marketing material to promote and inform 
current and potential consumers, their carers and families about the services and 
programs we offer. Specific information relating to CDC is clearly articulated including 
what this means for individual consumers, their eligibility and what is involved in the 
budgeting. Information sharing, consultation, decision making and choice are an 
integral part of our approach. 

I wish to extend my appreciation to all the staff at Diversicare for their outstanding 
professional work ethic and excellent service delivery to all our valued consumers 
throughout the year. I also wish to thank the commonwealth and state governments 
and community and health organisations and individuals who work collaboratively with 
Diversicare to ensure our goals and objectives are met.   
     
I would like to take this opportunity to thank the Management Committee of 
Diversicare, Chairperson Serge Voloschenko, Director and Chair of the Finance, 
Audit & Risk Committee Alex Daniloff, Directors Alton Budd and Freda Valassakis, 
Company Secretary Kerry Xynias and CEO Garry Page who lead Diversicare’s strategic 
operations.  I would also like to thank the General Manager of Berlasco Court, Athena 
Ermides, for her support throughout this financial year.                                          

Message from Diversicare
General Manager  
Vivienne McDonald   

9
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About ECCQ 
ECCQ has established a long and proud history of contributions to the development of Queensland as a harmonious 
multicultural society.

We believe that everyone, irrespective of their background, should be able to participate and contribute in all 
aspects of Australian society. 

ECCQ has been part of building the multicultural infrastructure of the state and has specifically contributed to 
this by developing innovative multicultural services that have met the needs of many Queenslanders from CALD 
backgrounds. 

For 40 years, ECCQ has continued to be the reference point for multicultural affairs and ethnic community 
representation in Queensland. For 27 years, ECCQ has been the industry leader in providing culturally inclusive 
community based and in home care through our division, Diversicare. For 28 years, ECCQ’s division, Berlasco Court 
Caring Centre has been the only recognised residential care provider in Queensland that focuses on cultural 
inclusiveness.

Having reached our 40th year, it is important to take stock of the changes around us; whether it is the changing 
nature of government funding and support, the changing nature of migration, the evolving issues, challenges and 
barriers experienced by CALD members of society or the increasing CALD aging population. We need to keep both 
current and relevant.

With a highly skilled professional staff and a revitalised governance and corporate structure, the Board of Directors, 
CEO and Senior Leadership Team will steer the organisation into its next phase. We look forward to continuing to 
contribute to multicultural Queensland.

10
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Vision  

Purpose  

A society whereby people from CALD 
backgrounds are supported to maximise 
their potential and in which their productive 
contribution to Queensland is recognised.

To lead the development and participation 
of multicultural communities in Queensland 
through advocacy, support, services and 
capacity building.

Our values 
R E S P E C T 

CONSTRUCTIVE 
DIALOGUE

I N T E G R I T Y 
DIVERSITY 

Our staff 
diversity 
Approximately 72% of our staff members 
speak two or more languages 

Our staff members speak approximately 
60 languages

Approximately 71% of our staff members 
were born overseas

Our staff members represent 
approximately 64 different cultural 
backgrounds

11

Strategic Goals 
1. LEADERSHIP
Provide a legitimate voice for multicultural 
communities.

2. COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT
Resource and facilitate the development of 
multicultural communities throughout 
Queensland and to enhance their ability to 
represent and respond to the needs of their 
community members.

3. RESEARCH & INNOVATION
Drive the development of evidence 
based advocacy and service delivery and 
knowledge about the lived experience of 
Queensland’s multicultural communities.

4. SERVICE EXCELLENCE
Maintain and further develop vital services 
and best practice. 

5.  SUSTAINABILITY
Achieve ongoing financial sustainability. 

6. ORGANISATIONAL CAPACITY
Develop governance and operational 
capacity to drive and support the purpose 
and strategic goals of ECCQ.
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eccQ Board of directors

ceo

diversicare
eccQ

multicultural 
services

Berlasco court 
caring centre 

Multicultural Services 
The multicultural services division 
focuses on empowering people 
from CALD backgrounds through 
community engagement, 
policy development, sector 
collaboration, supporting 
community associations, 
education and training and better 
health outcomes. 

Current community engagement 
programs: 
• Community Leadership Program  
• Community Work Skills Program
• CALD Women’s Engagement 
Project
• Aqua Safety Project

Our health programs focus 
on preventative care, self-
management and delivery of 
culturally appropriate health 
information, resources and 
education. 

Current health programs:
• Hepatitis, HIV/AIDS and Sexual 
Health Program
• Chronic Disease Program

Diversicare 
The community care division 
provides high quality community 
based and coordinated in home 
care for older people, carers and 
people with disabilities to enable 
people to enjoy life and maintain 
independence, good health and 
wellbeing in their own homes and 
in the community. Diversicare 
offers culturally appropriate 
services in many languages. 

Current community services 
• The Commonwealth Home 
Support Program
• Home Care Package Program
• Premier Home Care Services
• Community Visiters Scheme
• West End (WE) Connect – 
Activities Centre 
• Diversicare Transport Service 
Toowoomba

Diversicare is also leading 
provider of culturally appropriate 
resources, information, education 
and training to state funded 
community care and aged care 
service providers and to CALD 
communities. 

Current education programs 
• Multicultural Advisory Service 
• Partners in Culturally Appropriate 
Care 
• Cultural Awareness in the 
Workplace
• Wellness, Reablement and 
Restorative Care

Berlasco Court 
The residential care division 
is a fully accredited facility 
committed to a high standard 
of nursing care for residents 
from a wide range of cultural 
backgrounds. 

Services:
• Registered nurses are on duty 
24 hours a day to ensure a high 
quality of care
• Staff speak over 56 languages 
allowing residents to speak their 
first language when needed
• Allied Health Professionals offer 
services when necessary at no 
cost
• Information provided on other 
health services 
• Cultural calendar of activities 
to celebrate the resident’s CALD 
backgrounds 

The Leisure and Lifestyle Program 
A team of diversional therapists/
assistants organise a wide range 
of activities including exercises, 
arts & crafts, card games, music, 
concerts and outings to suit 
the interests and abilities of the 
residents.

The program also matches up 
volunteers with residents to 
create opportunities for social 
connections that are culturally 
sensitive for residents.

12
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Cairns

Townsville

Rockhampton

Mackay

Sunshine Coast

Toowoomba
Brisbane

Gold Coast 

Where we work 

eccQ multicultural services is headquartered in West End and 
delivers health education and community engagement programs in 
Rockhampton, Townsville, Mackay, Cairns and Southeast Queensland. 

diveriscare has offices in Cairns, Townsville, Sunshine Coast (Caloundra), 
Brisbane (West End), Mt Gravatt, Toowoomba and Gold Coast and 
delivers services and health/aged care education and training across the 
state.  

Berlasco court caring centre is located in Indooroopilly. 
 

13
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ECCQ Membership

Queensland is home to people who speak more 
than 220 languages, hold more than 100 religious 
beliefs and come from more than 220 countries. 
Throughout our history, waves of immigrants have 
enriched our culture, added to our productive 
capacity as a nation and have enhanced our 
influence in the world.

But even as we celebrate our multicultural success 
story, we have to remember that it’s still being 
written and there’s still work to do to. We need to 
keep up the good work we are all doing in the 
community and multicultural sectors to continue 
to seek equity and access to social and economic 
opportunities for all. We know that policies that 
ensure inclusiveness, collaboration and sense of 
belonging create stronger communities. 

ECCQ membership is comprised of new and 
emerging and established CALD community 
associations, CALD individuals and community 
sector organisations across Queensland. We 
represent 145 ethnic community associations 
and organisations providing multicultural services 
and 146 individual members who have a stake in 
multiculturalism.

ECCQ members are an integral part of a diverse 
and robust network of individuals, groups and 
associations who support multiculturalism. 
Members have voting rights to select directors 
to serve on ECCQ’s Board and they have 
the chance to contribute to ECCQ’s work in 
developing advocacy priority areas and research. 

ECCQ organises quarterly Members & 
Communities Meetings on topics relevant to 
CALD community associations and people from 
CALD backgrounds. This year topics included 
social media for community engagement, 
violence against women and running a successful 
community event. 

Towards the end of the financial year, ECCQ 
developed a plan to reformat these meetings. 
We will hold a series of Access & Equity Workshops 
to provide regular opportunities to hear from our 
members and communities, share and gather 
feedback about the work we are doing and to 
have an ongoing dialogue about how we can 
work together as a sector.

ECCQ conducted a Member and Stakeholder 
Survey in April 2016 as the first step to revitalising 
ECCQ’s member engagement strategy. The 
survey results will help us better understand 
the contemporary needs of our members and 
communities and how ECCQ can better meet 
those needs. 

A common theme was the need for increased 
community engagement, training and advocacy 
on behalf of CALD communities. The responses 
also indicated that ECCQ is well positioned to 
respond to the needs and interests of CALD 
communities and is a valued member-based 
organisation. ECCQ is committed to working 
alongside our members and communities to 
ensure better outcomes for CALD Queenslanders.

14
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40 YEARS 
OF ECCQ

#40yearsofECCQ 
#SeekEquity 
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I was born in Bhutan however my family follows the Nepalese culture and we speak Nepalese.  
That’s why in the photo I am wearing Nepalese dress instead of Bhutanese dress. 

We went to Nepal through India and moved into a little tent on the border for a few months. Then 
my parents discovered the UNHCR and we were moved to a refugee camp located in the Jhapa 
and Morang districts. We lived in camp seven and spent 20 years there.  

School in the camp was taught by volunteers, and sometimes older brothers and sisters who 
had completed the most education in Bhutan and there was no work in the camp. Everyone 
volunteered and took turns doing tasks like cleaning, helping to unload, carry and distribute the 
rice when it arrived and so on. 

In Nepal, we had no rights and no legal right to live or work outside of the camp so many people 
wanted to go back to Bhutan but we couldn’t go back. We had no genuine documents. In 
Bhutan, there are different ranks of citizenship. If you are born in Bhutan, and able to provide 
all documents required then you have rank one, but if you are unable to provide documents, 
you are rank 2, so you are second class citizens and you don’t have the same rights, and if you 
leave the country you can’t go back.  In the end, we decided our only option was third country 
resettlement. 

When I finished year 10 of school, I went with my uncle on a walk to a construction site outside 
the camp where he was working under the table, but on the way there he was attacked and 
beaten. I was told to leave so I went straight back home to the camp. My uncle was taken to a 
police station and fined. My uncle just wanted to work. After that I knew I couldn’t live there, so 
I was so happy to learn I would go to Australia. At that time Julia Gillard was Prime Minister and I 
thought a country that is run by a woman must be a good country.

I came to Australia with my grandad in January 2012 and then my parents arrived six months later 
and my sister and her family arrived in 2013. My family is actually divided between here and the 
U.S. and some are still in Bhutan and in Nepal.

I studied English for three years and in 2013 I started working at MDA as a cultural support worker, 
where I still work as a casual worker. In 2015 I began studying nursing and I have now completed 
my diploma in nursing. I started working at ECCQ in August in the Chronic Disease Program. 

I have always wanted to work in health care. Even in the camp I felt that health is wealth. When 
we are unhealthy we can’t do anything, even if we have many skills, we can’t earn money if 
we are ill. I, personally, don’t smoke and drink and encourage others not to smoke and drink, 
especially in front of me! I found that my community can really benefit from the training ECCQ 
offers and I enjoy educating my community about health and how to live a healthy life. 

Bala Ram Rai 
Multicultural Health Worker 
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HIGHLIGHTS
from

2015/2016 

 

The Community Work Skills 
Project assisted 15 students from 
CALD backgrounds to complete 
Certificate III in Aged Care and 
Individual Support and 14 more 
students were commencing 
work placements. Eight students 
had secured employment and 
three students embarked on a 
pathway to higher education. 

 

The Community Leadership 
Program provided free training 
to 68 participants from 17 
countries including Afghanistan, 
Iraq, Iran, South Sudan, 
Democratic Republic of Congo, 
Eritrea, Ethiopia, Zimbabwe, 
Bhutan, Myanmar and Sri Lanka. 

 

The CALD Women Engagement 
Project interviewed 84 women 
on the challenges and barriers 
to community participation. The 
report offers recommendations 
on how to enhance and 
support participation.
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Minister for Multicultural 
Affairs, the Honourable 
Grace Grace MP, addressed 
approximately 150 individuals 
from Queensland’s multicultural 
community at a breakfast 
hosted by ECCQ on 5 April 2016.

 

We delivered 95 free community 
workshops and information 
sessions on HIV, viral hepatitis, 
and STIs to 793 participants. 

Approximately 200 CALD 
people attended our World 
AIDS Day Forum and over 800 
CALD people attended our 
World Hepatitis Day events

We supported 41 people 
from non-English speaking 
backgrounds with complex 
needs to access information, 
testing, treatment and other 
support services.  

Out of the 41 people supported, 
26 were living with hepatitis B 
and 15 were living with HIV.
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This year we distributed 
approximately 8,807 printed 
resources about HIV, viral 
hepatitis, STIs, testing and 
prevention and general sexual 
health information in many 
languages. 

We distributed approximately 
3,041 condoms to people from 
CALD backgrounds.
 

We conducted 31 eight week 
Living Well Multicultural - 
Multicultural Healthy Lifestyle 
Programs to 434 participants 
from the following communities: 
Afghani, Arabic-speaking, 
Pacific and South Sea Islander, 
Vietnamese, Somali, Sudanese 
and Sri-Lankan.

 

Our CALD Outreach Screening 
Project screened 95 individuals 
at risk of chronic disease in 
the community, 79 cases 
were referred to a GP and 27 
cases were confirmed by a 
GP as having an undiagnosed 
chronic disease (hypertension, 
hypercholesterolemia and/or 
diabetes).
 

HIGHLIGHTS
from

2014/2015 

 

HIGHLIGHTS
from

2015/2016 
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The Aqua Safe Project delivered 
15 education workshops 
attended by 170 participants 
who learned water safety and 
CPR. 

 

The number of Commonwealth 
Home Support Program 
consumers increased by 20 
percent (811 to 1,011) from 
January to June 2016.

We delivered 327 Home Care 
Packages of various levels in 
Brisbane, Caboolture, Sunshine 
Coast, West Moreton and 
Logan River Valley regions.
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Diversicare Transport Service 
Toowoomba  provided 
transport services to over 679 
Toowoomba residents over 65 
years of age, allowing them to 
maintain their independence 
and well-being.
 

Diversicare’s Community 
Visitors Scheme matched up 18 
volunteers with people aged 
over 65 from the same CALD 
backgrounds. They made 322 
support visits to residential care 
facilities and to people’s homes. 

Diversicare’s Multicultural 
Advisory Service (MAS) team 
delivered statewide cultural 
training workshops to over 1,000 
people who work in community 
care and aged care. 

The MAS team also delivered 
culturally appropriate 
information sessions on how 
to access health services to 
over 2,000 people from CALD 
backgrounds. 

HIGHLIGHTS
from

2015/2016 
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The Partners in Culturally 
Appropriate Care team 
delivered 49 community 
information sessions and/or 
community events reaching 
1,227 people from CALD 
backgrounds. 

The team also delivered 16 
training sessions for aged care 
providers and 271 staff members 
attended.  

Each month, West End (WE) 
Connect Activities Centre 
organises social activities and 
cultural events, which are 
attended by approximately 300 
people aged 65 and up from 
CALD backgrounds.

Berlasco Court was successful in 
the 2015 Aged Care Approvals 
Round (ACAR) for a $10 million 
capital grant to rebuild the 
facility to add an additional 
48 new places, which will, 
upon completion, increase the 
number of residents from 60 to 
108.
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I was born in Rosario, the second biggest city in Argentina and then I grew up in San Lorenzo.

My husband and I moved to Australia for the first time in 1973 and settled in Sydney. That was 
the time of the “Dirty War”, (Guerra Sucia) and the Military Government had taken control of the 
country. They wanted to hold on to power and do things their way, but we were a democratic 
country and we wanted to go back to democracy. The military was killing many people who 
did not accept the government; many of the people killed were young people; thousands were 
killed. I was only 23 when we left. 

In 1982, the Military Government had committed many crimes and had destroyed the country. 
People had started to speak up and one of the leaders in government decided to give people 
the right to vote again. My country became a democracy again. 

In 1983, Argentina had a democratic government and I told my husband that for me it was time 
to go back. I missed my family. But by then I had two young Australian children. My daughter, Su 
was nine and John was four. 

We decided to go back to San Lorenzo. My children grew up there and went to private school. 
We are very friendly and social people, so the children were able to make a lot of friends.  

When my children were grown, Argentina had started to become unstable due to the recession 
and young people didn’t have much work or job opportunities and both my children wanted to 
come back to Australia. We told them, “it’s your choice; we made our own choice years earlier.” 
We decided we would go with them; we are a very close family. 

In 1998, Su arrived in Australia with her husband and two daughters and then my husband 
followed to help them. John and his wife and daughter (another daughter was born in Australia) 
came next and I eventually followed after wrapping up visa paper work. 

The second time around I was no longer a young woman and I left a successful career behind. 
I went back to school in Argentina and became a Radiologist. I was a supervisor there; I had 
people under my charge and taught students. 

The first time around I worked many jobs, mostly factory work and cleaning jobs. So I started 
cleaning again – hotels, banks, offices, etc., while I was trying to get my qualifications recognised. 
I was eventually told I would have to go to university again. I was already 51; this, for me, was 
impossible. I had worked as a Radiologist for 15 years and there is a very high standard in 
Argentina. I decided to start researching other areas of work I could do. 

I decided to go into aged care because there were opportunities and I wanted to continue to 
help people. I got a Certificate III in Aged Care and I started working in a nursing home. For one 
year, I worked nights in the nursing home, three days a week at Diversicare and studied two days 
a week, until I finished my studies. 

I love my job at Diversicare. I am very passionate, sometimes too much! My current position is 
Home Support Officer. We help people; we try to do our best for them by providing the best 
service. I am also able to communicate to some of our consumers in Spanish, which is so helpful.

Susana Ordonez
Diveriscare Home Support Officer 
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Community Engagement

ECCQ supports social and economic participation 
for all Queenslanders through strengthening 
community associations, delivering leadership 
training, creating employment pathways and 
raising awareness of the benefits of cultural 
diversity. 

Staying connected

ECCQ seeks opportunities to showcase success 
stories and the benefits of multiculturalism in the 
media. This year ECCQ’s work was showcased 
in mainstream including, ABC Radio, WIN 
News, Cairns Post, SBS and Quest Community 
Newspapers and in ethnic media including Indian 
Times, Australian Chinese Times, Asian Community 
News Weekly, SS Tuan Bao and 4EB Radio.

ECCQ’s social media pages reach thousands of 
supporters, stakeholders and the general public 
through posts on current news, events and articles 
relevant to ECCQ’s work and multiculturalism 
generally as well as inspirational stories about 
immigration, successful settlement and health.

ECCQ’s e-newsletter is sent to approximately 2,000 
subscribers every month. It has updates on ECCQ’s 
work, and what’s happening in the community.

The Multicultural Advisory Service newsletter is 
distributed across the state including rural and 
remote regions to over 1000 people who provide 
services to people from CALD backgrounds. Topics 
focus on issues, challenges and best practice.  

The Partners in Culturally Appropriate Care 
(PICAC) newsletter is sent out quarterly to over 
500 people in the aged care sector and focuses 
on how to meet the needs of older people from 
CALD backgrounds. 

EVOCA Magazine publishes stories on quality 
work and research with important impact and 
topics and issues relevant to Queensland’s 
CALD communities and multicultural sector. The 
magazine is printed and distributed to over 300 
ECCQ members and it is also accessible to read 
online.

Diversicare’s client newsletter is distributed to 
approximately 1,400 clients and their families twice 
a year and focuses on available services, any 
changes to service delivery, consumer stories and 
staff profiles.

The Multicultural Calendar is produced annually 
featuring multicultural festivals, days of cultural 
and spiritual significance and personal stories.
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Racism stops with ECCQ 

ECCQ is proud to have joined forces with some of 
Australia’s leading businesses, sporting bodies and 
NGO’s to support the “Racism. It Stops With Me” 
campaign. 

ECCQ launched its support at an event with 
Race Discrimination Commissioner, Dr Tim 
Soutphommasane in April 2016 and is the first peak 
body in Queensland to join the campaign.

The Commissioner addressed ECCQ staff at the 
launch and spoke about the importance of the 
campaign.

“Racism comes in many different forms and can 
impact individuals in many different ways.

“We need to identify racism, not only as an act of 
violence or extremism but also in its more subtle 
forms, in negative stereotypes, ignorance and 
hurtful words,” said the Commissioner.

“I would like to welcome ECCQ to this campaign 
and we look forward to seeing the actions they 
take to counter racism.”

Also speaking at the campaign launch was Mr 
Mucktar Wesseh, an ECCQ member and recent 
Brisbane City Council election candidate who 
spoke about his personal experience, having been 
the victim of racist acts in recent months.

“There have been several instances in which I 
have been impacted by direct and indirect forms 
of racism.

“For me, these experiences have taught me a lot 
about how to react to racism,” said Mr Wesseh.

ECCQ’s CEO Garry Page said that it is essential 
organisations such as ECCQ take a stand against 
acts of racism and have a no tolerance policy.

“While cultural diversity is central to our national 
identity, the reality is that too many Australians 
experience racism, prejudice and discrimination 
on a regular basis,” said Mr Page.

“Racism is not acceptable in our work places, our 
communities or our country.

“Today, we pledged our support to this campaign 
to demonstrate our commitment to ensuring that 
racism is not ignored or accepted. Racism stops 
with us,” said Mr Page.
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I was born in Harare, Zimbabwe; but I was born during colonialisation, so it was still called Salisbury, 
Rhodesia at that time. It was changed to Harare after Zimbabwe was granted independence 
from Great Britain in 1980. Everyone was happy at that time, celebrating and singing, it was a 
good time. But then things changed. 

President Robert Mugabe had won the election in 1980 and held onto power (he is still in 
power today). People started speaking out and the Movement for Democratic Change (MDC) 
was established as an opposition party. My ex-husband was the first manager for the MDC 
Parliamentary Caucus. This is why we had to leave Zimbabwe because our family was in danger. 
In 2000, under Mugabe, a government sanctioned land distribution program caused violent 
takeovers where white farmers were being killed, but even black farmers and black farm workers 
were being killed and political activists were being killed and tortured. 

Before independence, most of the farm land was owned by white farmers and the black majority 
were placed in arid regions. The blacks went to war because they wanted fair distribution of 
land. But after Mugabe was voted into power, he didn’t change this. He was clever and used 
the land issue as a political tool and kept it in his handbag. Once people started to oppose him, 
he sanctioned the forced land takeovers. From the outside it looked like a land issue, but it was 
actually about suppressing the opposition and holding onto power. 

I moved to New Zealand in 2001 and then my ex-husband and my three daughters, Davidzo, 
Simbisai and Mazviita came in 2002. My son, Kuziva was born in New Zealand. I went first to get 
established there. If things got really bad my family would have had to leave quickly with just a 
bag. This was plan B, but we were optimistic, we thought the opposition might win. If things turned 
out ok, I would have gone back home, but things were not ok. 

Zimbabweans were leaving the country like there was no tomorrow. My ex-husband advocated 
for and organised the open work permits and presented to the New Zealand Parliament. Permits 
were subsequently granted to every Zimbabwean in New Zealand in 2002. 

I was then able to register as a teacher and become a primary teacher again, which was my 
career in Zimbabwe. In 2006, I decided to work in the HIV area and went back to school to study 
public health. People were dying of AIDS in Zimbabwe. I lost my two sisters, their husbands, other 
family members, students, neighbours, former work colleagues; so I thought this is the area I must 
work in. 

After studying different viruses and symptoms I realised I must get tested. I then found out I had 
hepatitis C; I went on treatment and got cured. I moved to Sydney in 2011, and moved into the 
hepatitis area. I moved to Brisbane in 2014. I worked for Hepatitis Queensland before starting my 
current position at ECCQ in January 2016.  

This work is my passion. I bring my personal experience of testing positive and getting treatment, 
my academic qualifications, and belief that this is my true calling to do this work with CALD 
communities. 

Fungisai Siggins 
Health Program Officer
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Community Leadership Program
ECCQ’s Community Leadership Program, funded 
by the Department of Social Services under the 
Settlement Grants Program, provides free training 
and aims to increase community self-reliance 
by supporting community leaders and aspiring 
leaders from new and emerging communities to 
increase their leadership capacity, advocacy skills 
and association governance.   

The training includes topics on: 

• Leadership skills – role of leaders, advocacy, 
cross-cultural communication, and how to 
engage with media 

• Governance skills – establishing an organisation, 
management committee roles and responsibilities, 
financial management, event management, 
conflict resolution and strategic planning.

This year we conducted five training programs 
in Brisbane and surrounding areas and in Cairns, 
including a program designed for the Islamic 
Women’s Association of Queensland (IWAQ).

The 68 participants represented 17 countries 
including Afghanistan, Iraq, Iran, South Sudan, 
Democratic Republic of Congo, Eritrea, Ethiopia, 
Zimbabwe, Bhutan, Myanmar and Sri Lanka. 

In June 2016 we held a forum bringing together 22 
participants from previous programs. It was a great 
opportunity to network and share experiences, 
including common challenges and suggestions 
for how community leadership can make a 
difference. 
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The program strengthens the participants’ 
capacity to enable them to develop community 
associations and organisations and formal and 
informal groups. 

This year Congolese participants established 
an informal women’s sewing group and the 
Congolese United for Peace and Reconciliation 
in Australia (CUPRA) was established and is in 
the process of becoming incorporated. Many 
members of the African Australian Women’s 
Network’s (AAWN) Executive Committee 
participated in the Community Leadership 
Program and they are now in the process 
of developing a constitution and becoming 
incorporated. 

The program initiates opportunities for community 
leaders to participate in multicultural and 
mainstream forums to represent their communities.
 
Special mention goes to Atem Nuer, a South 
Sudanese community leader, who helped 
organise the Community Leadership Program at 
Goodna after identifying the need for community 
capacity building. 

After completing the program he was selected to 
be part of the Community Reference Group for 
West Moreton Hospital and Health Services. 

Many participants became more involved in 
ECCQ programs and events as a starting point 
for putting community leadership in action. Many 
attended the ECCQ hosted breakfast with the 
Minister for Multicultural Affairs Grace Grace held 
in April 2016 and some asked questions. An Iraqi 
woman on the north side organised a group 
for the ECCQ Living Well Program and some 
participants volunteered at the ECCQ World AIDS 
Day event in Logan in December 2015. 

Additionally, ECCQ links participants from new 
communities with those from more established 
communities who can share with them their 
community vision, challenges and strategies in 
building their community capacity. 

The participants receive resources and ongoing 
practical support from ECCQ.

Aqua Safe Pilot Project
In partnership with BCC and Royal Life Saving 
Society Queensland, ECCQ delivered tailored 
Aqua Safe Education workshops for CALD 
communities, including: Arabic speaking, Afghani, 
Iranian, Sri Lankan, Sudanese and Vietnamese 
communities in Brisbane. 

This initiative helped to better equip parents, 
carers and adults to take care of their children 
around water. 

It was also a great opportunity to increase the 
number of community members who are skilled in 
performing CPR (Cardio Pulmonary Resuscitation). 

ECCQ delivered 15 education workshops reaching 
170 participants over the last nine months. 

The evaluation of the workshops showed a 
significant increase in participants’ confidence 
level in or around the water (swimming pool, river, 
creek and beach) and significant increase in 
participants’ understanding of important signage 
around swimming pools and beaches. 

The majority of participants were happy with 
the program and the facilitation by ECCQ’s 
bilingual Multicultural Health Workers. Majority of 
participants felt that the information and training 
was extremely useful and culturally appropriate for  
people who speak English as a second language. 
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 Community leaders in action 

  

 Mabior Ring  
  

 Leandre Nkuriza  
Leandre Nkuriza is from the Democratic 
Republic of Congo, one of the most 
culturally and linguistically diverse 
countries in Africa. He had an idea for an 
organisation that could help bring peace 
and reconciliation between Congolese 
groups in Australia. 

He participated in the Community 
Leadership Program in Goodna and 
received the support, resources and 
knowledge to establish the Congolese 
United for Peace and Reconciliation in 
Australia (CUPRA). CUPRA is now in the 
process of becoming incorporated.

Leandra said the program has helped 
him learn many things and it gave him 
the opportunity to learn about ECCQ and 
meet Rose Brown, Community Leadership 
Program Manager. 

“All the guest speakers are really helpful 
for someone who is building a new 
association and for a leader who wants to 
help others.”

Mabior Ring is from South Sudan and 
arrived to Australia in December 2013. He 
completed the Community Leadership 
Program with the Goodna group in April 
2016. He attended the ECCQ hosted 
breakfast with Multicultural Affairs Minister 
Grace Grace in April where he asked 
a question on behalf of the community 
leaders group. 

He asked: “Employment is a big issue 
for many people. Some are very highly 
qualified and have university degrees in 
Australia but still have difficulties getting 
into the workforce. Does the Queensland 
government have any programs or 
initiatives for employing people from 
multicultural backgrounds?”

Mabior also met Wayne Briscoe, Executive 
Director of Multicultural Affairs Queensland 
at the breakfast event and made a 
great impression. He was subsequently 
invited to present at a meeting of senior 
public servants from the Queensland 
Government where he told of his difficulty 
and frustration gaining employment in his 
field of work even though he completed 
high school in Queensland and a Bachelor 
of Government and International 
Relations from Griffith University. To support 
his wife and children, he was working in 
warehousing. 

He recently accepted a job opportunity 
in Melbourne with the National Bank of 
Australia with assistance from the African 
Australian Inclusion Program. 
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 Community leaders in action 

CALD Women Engagement 
Project 
In June 2015, ECCQ was funded by Brisbane City 
Council (BCC) to conduct research to identify the 
cultural, social, economic and learning needs of 
women from CALD backgrounds in order to shed 
light upon how service providers and programs 
can address these needs to enhance their 
community participation.

The research project methodology included 
a literature review and focus groups and key 
informant interviews with 84 women from CALD 
backgrounds including: Arabic speaking, 
Samoan, Spanish speaking, Tamil, Sudanese and 
Vietnamese. 

The research findings and honest reflections of 
the women who participated directly informed 
the recommendations for the development and 
implementation of future initiatives by service 
providers that could enhance the participation of 
CALD women in ethnic and wider communities in 
Brisbane.

The research project phase one report includes 
challenges to community engagement and 
recommendations.

Phase two of the project includes women forums 
to discuss and put forth ideas and solutions based 
on the identified needs and challenges. 

The research found the following challenges to 
community engagement:
• Lack of English language proficiency 
• Lack of available information about community 
programs and activities 
• Racial discrimination 
• Work-life balance
• Cultural and religious barriers 
• Transport barriers
• Safety issues at night for women 
• Lack of understanding about role of local 
governments and  process to engage with service 
providers
• Education, employment and income parity 

The report offered the following 
recommendations:
• Increase awareness of programs through proper 
channels using appropriate methods
• Directly engage and collaborate with CALD 
women in planning community engagement
• Ensure the principle of inclusiveness is reflected in 
recruitment for all service providers
• Provide flexible arrangements for women and 
more family oriented programs and support
• Create cultural connections 
• Invest in community capacity building
• Provide leadership support to CALD women 
• Effectively use existing resources in CALD 
communities to leverage outcomes
• Enable easier access to funding opportunities
• Improve safety and security 
• Provide more simplified processes for recognition 
of skills/qualifications from overseas
• Implement more research

35



WWW.ECCQ.COM.AU36



WWW.ECCQ.COM.AU ECCQ AnnUAl REpORt - 2015/2016

I was born in Bucharest, Romania, during the time of Nicolae Ceausescu. I was 12 when the 
Romanian Revolution happened and Ceausescu was executed. Growing up in Romania during 
that time was so different than growing up in Australia. There are certain freedoms, like freedom 
of speech that you are used to in the Western World that we didn’t experience back in the 
Ceausescu days. 

We couldn’t say anything negative about the government. People lived in fear and everyone 
had to be careful to never say anything negative about the powers to be. Behind closed doors 
you may say something, but only in front of very close family members, no one else; because 
everyone was always afraid someone could be an informant. It has changed now. 

Food was rationed during those days. Anything that didn’t grow in Romania, like tropical fruits, 
bananas and pineapples, things like that were very hard to come by. But anything that grew 
in Romania, like cherries and apples were in abundance. You just went to the market or to the 
countryside forg locally sourced produce and meat. But other items, like bread, were rationed 
and only available during certain days. I remember my grandma would take a little stool to sit in 
line for hours on Sunday for bread or cheese. 

We left Romania in 1990 after the borders opened. Communism, or maybe it was the Ceausescu 
mentality, had drained the country. My parents knew it would take up to 20 years for the country 
to recover and they wanted a better life for me. We went to Denmark and applied for refugee 
status but we no longer fit the refugee criteria because communism had collapsed. Romanians 
were no longer considered to be politically oppressed. We then applied to resettle in Canada 
and Australia and we were approved for both, but the Australian visa approval came first so 
Australia it was, plus dad preferred the warm weather. 

We came to Brisbane in 1992 when I was 15 years old. My English was proficient enough to enrol in 
mainstream school and after taking an ESL class I moved into mainstream classes. My parents had 
to get their electronic engineering qualifications recognised, so they had to go back to school. 
My father worked wherever he could and my mother eventually went into healthcare.

I’ve been back to Romania a few times as an adult and I took my four kids, Christian (who is now 
18 years old), Philip (16 years old), Jennifer (15 years old) and Gabriel (11 years old) to Romania in 
2010 and they loved it. They loved the food and their family. My family loves the kids and we went 
from family feast to family feast.

I started working at Diversicare five years ago. I knew a fair bit about multiculturalism, but I knew 
very little about community care. What really drove it home for me was a photoshoot I was 
involved with after being on the job for about six months. We invited Home Care Workers and 
clients to the Botanical Gardens to be a part of the photoshoot and it was the first time I saw our 
workers and clients together. I saw what we do and what we bring to their lives. It was amazing 
to see how a day out lit up their faces. We enable people to live independently for as long as 
possible. I realised the impact this kind of work can have. 

In terms of IT, I am most excited about the future enabling technologies, which will empower our 
clients to be independent longer, and continue to do things they love doing, all while knowing 
help is always at hand through the use of non-invasive technologies monitoring their wellbeing 
and aiding with some of their daily tasks.

Sofian Mihalcea 
IT Team Leader
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Community Work Skills Project 
The Community Work Skills Project, funded by the 
Department of Education and Training, through 
its Skilling Queenslanders for Work initiative, offers 
Certificate II in Skills for Work and Vocational 
Pathways and Certificate III in Aged Care and 
Individual Support to CALD communities in 
Brisbane and surrounding metropolitan areas. 

In partnership with the Royal College of Health 
Care, the project delivers the course in a 
community setting and provides culturally 
appropriate and individually tailored support 
before, during and after course completion. The 
project also organises work placements and 
assists with securing employment after successful 
completion of the course. 

Since the project commenced in September 2015, 
29 students from 15 countries including China, 
Vietnam, Malaysia, Indonesia, Taiwan, Hong 
Kong, South Korea, Sudan, Nepal, Tonga, Papua 
New Guinea, Japan, India, Sri Lanka and the 
Philippines, have participated in the course.  

As of June 2016: 

• 1st intake: Out of 15 students, 14 students 
have been assisted to complete Certificate II in 
skills for Work and Vocational Pathways before 
transitioning to Certificate III in Aged Care. Eight 
students have already been employed and three 
students have embarked on a pathway to higher 
education.         
                                                                 
• 2nd intake: ECCQ is currently assisting 14 
students to complete Certificate III in Aged 
Care and find employment. All participants 
have successfully completed two weeks of work 
placement with local aged care employers.
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  Sasten Tongun   
I am South Sudanese. I came to Australia in 2001. In 2007 my 
mother’s house was burnt down in Juba, so I had to return to South 
Sudan to help her and my family. My mother was taking care of my 
brother’s children after he was killed in the war. In my culture, if your 
brother dies you have to take care of his family. I found employment 
in South Sudan and worked until I had enough money to rebuild her 
home. I was finally able to return to Australia in 2014.
 
It is very hard to find a job. I have applied to more than 700 jobs. I 
have a university degree in English Language and Literature from 
Egypt and I have completed a diploma in business and a diploma in 
management here in Australia. Despite of this, it is hard to find a job.  
 
I decided to enrol in this training course for the possibility of getting 
a job. I have learned in this course and through my work placement 
that to do this kind of work you have to have empathy for others, 
especially for older people. Helping people is ingrained in my culture 
and reminds me of home. In South Sudan you don’t leave your older 
people to cope alone. I don’t like to see people suffering. When I 
see people suffering, it hurts me internally. I enjoy this work because I 
can help others.
 
I am currently doing my work placement at an aged care residential 
facility as a personal carer. I help take care of the resident’s physical 
needs. I hope to get a job in aged care and, eventually, to continue 
my studies in business. 

 Certificate III in Aged Care students 

I grew up in Sri Lanka, the island known as the pearl of the Indian 
Ocean. I was a registered nurse in Sri Lanka for 14 years. I came to 
Australia in 2014, after my wedding. When I came here I could not 
speak English very well. I enrolled in an English course at TAFE and 
gradually improved. 

I started this course because I thought it would provide a good 
foundation for my future nursing career in Australia. I really miss my 
nursing job in Sri Lanka. 

My short-term objective of the course was to find a job as a personal 
care assistant (PCA) at an aged care facility, while studying to gain 
the qualifications needed to be a registered nurse in Australia.

I went for my first interview just after two weeks of completing the 
course and I got the job as a PCA. 

I met lovely new friends from all different cultures during the course. 
I also had great and friendly teachers and I learned a lot. I learned 
about Australian work culture, how to care for the elderly and how 
to communicate with them. Since we come from different cultural 
backgrounds, it is very important to know how to communicate with 
others.

I hope that this program will continue to benefit many multicultural 
communities in the future.

 

Nirmalakumary 
Suntharalingam 
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I was born in Vietnam. As a baby, I was left in front of my adopted mother’s door in Saigon, 16 
days after the war ended. My mother had left to go see my grandma on the 17th of May 1975 
and when she returned on the 19th of May, I was there in a basket.

My mother was 30 at the time and had no other children. I don’t have an official birth certificate. 
My birth certificate was issued on 2 January 1976, but I was probably about 7 months old by then. 
My mother had to go into hiding during and after the war because her husband was a high 
ranking officer on the Southern pro-American side. After Saigon fell, hundreds of thousands were 
taken to concentration camps, what they called re-education camps. My father was one of 
them, but my family was never able to find him. My mom stayed back after the war for five years 
to wait for my dad and searched for him. We have to assume that he died.

My mom left Vietnam by boat in 1980 and settled in Melbourne and I was left behind with my 
grandma. She had spent so much time hiding and it was very hard to find work in Vietnam. 
She found work sewing in a factory in Melbourne almost straight away. She worked two jobs 
to support herself and me in Vietnam. She would send gold sewn into garments. I found the 
necklace I am wearing 20 years later because it had been sewn into a curtain! 

I finally joined her in 1986 when I was eleven years old. For six years I had only seen my mother in 
photographs. At that time, once you left Vietnam, you could not return. I was so excited because 
for such a long time I had wanted to be with my mom. 

I remember I arrived at night in April and I was so cold. I was fascinated by all the sparkly city 
lights! Things were very different and it was difficult at first. For example in Vietnam, when I would 
return from school the whole neighbourhood was my home. I could go to any house and stay 
there for as I long as I wanted. In Melbourne, this was not the case, of course, and we lived in a 
small one bedroom apartment. 

I arrived on a Saturday and by Tuesday I was enrolled in a mainstream school. I just sat in the 
classroom and smiled because I didn’t speak English. I was bullied a lot for that and I would 
hide out in the church next to the school to escape the other kids. A nun there gave me a cross 
pendant; I have worn it for 30 years. She helped me and talked to my teacher, who eventually 
gave me a Vietnamese to English dictionary. Soon I was brave enough to ask my teachers for 
extra help. 

I fell pregnant with my daughter when I was 19 years old and through a routine blood test for 
pregnant mums, I found out I have hepatitis B. I must have contracted it as a baby in Vietnam 
and never knew I had it. Fortunately my daughter did not contract it, but my son, unfortunately 
did. That was extremely hard for me and I will never forget the day I found out that my son also 
has hepatitis B. 

This inspired me to start working in community based organisations and to share my story to help 
others to get tested, get treatment if required, and to work hard to reduce the stigma around 
hepatitis.  

I’ve been working for ECCQ for six months. This job allows me to do what I am passionate about. 
I educate my community about viral diseases and support people at risk and people living with 
hepatitis, HIV, STIs, etc . In this job, I help so many people to live better, healthier lives. 

Linh Nguyen 
Vietnamese Community Health Worker 
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 Health Promotion 
A person’s health is crucial to their complete 
physical, mental and social well-being. At ECCQ 
we believe that all people should have access to 
health information and services that are culturally 
appropriate and relevant to their needs. 

Hepatitis, HIV/AIDS & Sexual 
Health Program

For 24 years, ECCQ has been funded by 
Queensland Health to engage with migrant and 
refugee communities to improve their awareness 
of HIV, viral hepatitis and sexually transmissible 
infections (STIs), and reduce the risk factors 
associated with higher infection rates.

This financial year we had a team of seven Bilingual 
Community Health Workers conduct workshops 
and provide support to CALD communities across 
Queensland. We ensure that accurate, relevant, 
up-to-date information about HIV, hepatitis and 
STIs is delivered in a culturally appropriate way in 
community languages.  

Communities and languages

We worked with a range of communities, but 
focused on people from high prevalence countries 
such as sub-Saharan Africa and South East Asia. 

The languages our program staff cover includes; 
Swahili, Shona, French, Kirundi, Kinyarwanda, Dinka, 
Acholi, Burmese, Madi, Mandarin, Cantonese, 
Vietnamese and English.

Community health education

This year we delivered 95 free community 
workshops and information sessions in Brisbane, 
Ipswich, Logan, Rockhampton, Gold Coast and 
Toowoomba on HIV, viral hepatitis, and STIs to 
793 participants from the following backgrounds: 
Congo, South Sudan, Liberian, Burundian, Rwanda, 
Burmese, Chinese, South Koran, Indian, Iran, 
Afghanistan, Tanzania, Togo, Turkish, Vietnamese 
and Sierra Leone. 

Out of the 95 workshops, 6 were delivered to 183 
TAFE Students in Rockhampton and Loganlea. 
The TAFE students were from the following 
backgrounds; Burmese, Thai, Filipino, Iraqi, Iranian, 
Ethiopian, Afghani,  Bosnian Congolese, Romanian, 
Chinese, South Korean, Vietnamese, Thai, Brazilian, 
Peruvian, Indian, Chinese, Iran, Afghanistan, 
Bangladeshi, Rohingya ,Zambian, Zimbabwean, 
Botswana, Cameroon, South Sudan and North 
Sudan, Cambodia and  Syria.

The majority of these sessions are delivered in 
community languages by our Bilingual Community 
Health Workers. For some communities, male 
and female Bilingual Community Health Workers 
have been employed to ensure gender specific 
workshops can be delivered. Workshops are 
delivered at a time and place convenient to 
community members.  

The workshops include information on transmission, 
prevention, testing, treatment, available services, 
stigma and discrimination with a strong focus on 
promoting testing, new hepatitis C treatment and 
the benefits of early treatment for HIV. 

Engaging community leaders  

ECCQ Bilingual Community Health Workers engage 
with community leaders through meetings and 
events. We also host specific workshops to equip 
leaders with the knowledge and skills to be health 
champions in their own communities.  

In this financial year, ECCQ conducted a workshop 
for 30 community leaders from African communities 
in Rockhampton. Leaders from the following 
communities attended: Zambia, Zimbabwe, 
Botswana, Cameroon, Sudan and Democratic 
Republic of the Congo. 

The workshops focused on how to increase 
awareness and knowledge of blood borne viruses 
(BBVs) and connected them with the local sexual 
health services through presentations conducted 
by representatives of local clinics. We also held 
a consultation session to gather ideas of how 
ECCQ can work better with African communities in 
regional areas. 
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Engaging stakeholders

ECCQ conducts workshops targeting stakeholders 
who work with CALD communities. In this financial 
year we delivered a series of workshops to 104 
ACCESS Community staff members on delivering 
culturally appropriate education on sensitive issues 
and topics like sexual health and viral diseases. 

Events to support World AIDS Day and 
World Hepatitis Day

ECCQ held an HIV forum for multicultural 
communities on 5 December 2015 at PCYC in 
Logan. Approximately 200 people attended from  
African, Asian, Pacific Islander and the Middle 
Eastern backgrounds.

The forum provided updated HIV information 
focusing on HIV testing, prevention, and 
treatment. The Honorable Cameron Dick MP, 
Minister for Health and Minister for Ambulance 
Services gave a speech on the importance of 
community champions. A positive speaker from 
Papua New Guinea shared her story of living with 
HIV. 

Forum participants received information from 
the Queensland Positive Speakers Bureau, 
Princess Alexandra Sexual Health Clinic and the 
Queensland AIDS Council. The aim of the event 
was to engage community leaders to encourage 
community members to get tested. Leaders 
committed to working with ECCQ to promote 
testing in their communities, engage young 
people and distribute condoms. 

ECCQ hosted two Healthy Liver Day events for 
multicultural communities at PCYC in Logan in 
July and August. Approximately 500 people from 
African, Asian, Middle Eastern and Pacific Islander 
cultural backgrounds attended the events. The 
speakers included Health Minister Cameron Dick 
and experienced speakers who shared their 
personal stories about living with hepatitis B and C 
and encouraged people to get tested. 

ECCQ also held community specific Healthy 
Liver Day events to raise awareness of hepatitis, 
prevention and testing in the Chinese and 
Vietnamese communities. A total of 310 
community members attended these events. 
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Support 

Our Bilingual Community Health Workers provide 
individual and family face-to-face support and 
telephone support to people living with or affected 
by HIV or viral hepatitis. The kind of support provided 
this year included: information and education, 
language support at appointments, assistance in 
filling out forms, referrals to other support services 
such as housing and financial support, and limited 
social support.

This year we supported 41 people from non-English 
speaking backgrounds with complex needs to 
access information, testing, treatment and other 
support services.  Out of the 41 people supported, 
26 were living with hepatitis B and 15 were living with 
HIV.

Resources

We have health information on a range of topics 
and in a variety of languages, available free 
of charge. Resources provided free to CALD 
communities included printed resources, DVDs, 
pens, rulers and condoms. 

This year we distributed approximately 8,807 printed 
resources in English, Filipino, Arabic, Burmese, 
Amharic, Tigrinya, Vietnamese, Chinese, French, 
Swahili and Greek Languages. The printed resources 
were about HIV, viral hepatitis, STIs, testing and 
prevention and general sexual health information. 
In addition, we distributed approximately 3,041 
condoms. 
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Information stalls

We held 19 information stalls at various multicultural 
events throughout the year to promote the 
program, health messages and distribute resources.

Orasure HIV testing project for the African 
Communities.

ECCQ partnered with Queensland Positive People, 
Toowoomba Sexual Health and HIV Service and 
Metro North Public Health Unit to investigate the 
acceptability of a peer based HIV testing service 
for African community members. This research 
project aimed to find out whether offering 
a community based testing service within a 
nonclinical setting overcomes particular barriers to 
HIV testing within the African community.  

Over the course of a year a total of 100 people 
were tested for HIV in a community setting. 
The research findings have been submitted for 
publication.

ECCQ participates in the following groups 
to represent the needs of the CALD 
people

• Australian Federation of AIDS Organisation 
(AFAO) African reference group 
• National Hepatitis B reference committee
• Brisbane BBV&STI interagency meetings
• National multicultural sexual health network 
• Community of Practice for Action on HIV and 
Mobility 
• Young women’s reference group for African 
female students
• Australasian Society for HIV Medicine (ASHM) 
Expert Reference Committee for the HIV, Viral 
Hepatitis, Sexual Health and Harm Reduction 
Workforce Development Program
• ASHM Clinical Hepatitis Workforce Development 
Program Steering Committee

ECCQ also contributed to: 

• AFAO’s ‘Mapping of HIV Health Promotion 
Programs and Resources for CALD communities’ 
Report by providing input by providing information 
on our program
• Interviews with the Chinese, Vietnamese and 
Burmese GPs to improve referral pathways for 
hepatitis B services, increase awareness of hepatitis 
B management, testing and vaccination and 
encourage them to attend hepatitis B prescriber 
courses
• Panel member at the Princess Alexandra 
Hospital Liver Cancer Workshops for clinic staff and 
researchers to provide perspective on addressing 
hepatitis B in CALD communities 
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I was born in Sulaymaniyah in Iraq Kurdistan, but I was raised in Baghdad.  
 
War was a part of life in Iraq. I was in primary school during the Iran-Iraq War which lasted from 
1980 to 1988. I can remember the planes flying by and hearing the bombs. I can remember 
running from school. I can even remember trying to hide under my neighbour because she was in 
high school and taller than my siblings and I. At first the war was in the cities, but then it moved to 
the borders.  

Then in 1991 Iraq went to war with Kuwait, I was in high school then. Then in 2003 the Iraq War 
started. At that time I had graduated from university and I was working as a lecturer at Baghdad 
University. I taught agricultural engineering.  

In 2008 I received a scholarship to study in the Master of Environment program at Griffith University. 
On October 28th 2008, my husband, three children and I arrived in Australia.   

My children were happy to be in Australia because there was war in Iraq and they felt safe here. I 
could let them go to school on their own and know that they would come back safe. They didn’t 
know much English, so at first it was hard for them. They started primary school and after three 
months they spoke better English than me!  My oldest son, Mohammed, is now 17, my daughter 
Avin is 16 and my daughter Chnar is 14.  

During that time I would do a lot of studying at night. I would organise the house, get the kids to 
bed and whenever I woke up, sometimes even in the middle of the night, I would start studying. 
Sometimes my husband would tell me to leave my books and get some sleep, but I came here to 
study, not to just enjoy, I came here on a scholarship so I had to get a good result.  

I graduated in 2012 and then we went back Baghdad. I went back to my lecturer job at the 
University of Baghdad and taught for one year. Iraq was still very unstable so I applied to come 
back to Australia and our application was accepted. 

We returned in January of 2014. My husband is a car mechanic and found a job as a mechanic 
here. I volunteered while looking for a job. I worked as an interpreter and then got a job as a 
teacher aid for ESL students at McGregor high school. Then I started working for ECCQ.  

When I was young it was a dream of mine to be a doctor. When I was in high school my dad 
made a mistake while filling out my application for university and chose agriculture engineering 
before medicine. I didn’t have any experience in that at the time and it wasn’t my dream to 
study that, but I did well, earned high marks and got a job teaching at a university right after I 
graduated, which is a dream for many in Iraq. It is a respected job and it is very flexible. And I 
loved the environment and working with young people.  

But now I want to continue to work in the health sector. My daughter Avin wants to be a dentist 
and my dream now is to pass the exam in order to study dentistry in Australia and maybe my 
daughter and I can study together. I hope I can do it.  

I love my job at ECCQ. I love learning more about health issues by helping Arabic-speaking 
communities and I love to be with my community.  Some people may think it’s too much to sign 
up to an 8-week program, but after they start with me, most of them come back. 

I love living in Australia. I feel relief, I feel safe. Everyone is so nice and I see smiles everywhere. 

Bahar Nader 
Multicultural Health Worker for 
Arabic Speaking communities
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Program resources have been developed in 
partnership with health professionals and chronic 
disease specific organisations and tailored to the 
needs to specific cultural groups 

This financial year, 31 eight week LWM-LMPs 
have been completed, with 434 participants 
enrolled across seven communities: Afghani, 
Arabic-speaking; Pacific and South Sea Islander; 
Vietnamese; Somali, Sudanese; and Sri-Lankan.
Sessions were delivered across the following areas: 
South East Queensland, Cairns, Townsville, Mackay 
and Rockhampton. 

Sessions were delivered across the following areas: 
South East Queensland, Cairns, Townsville, Mackay 
and Rockhampton.  

The main topics covered in the LWM-MHLP sessions 
were: 
• how to navigate the Australian Health Care 
system 
• chronic disease: diabetes type 2, cardiovascular 
disease, chronic kidney disease and chronic 
obstructive pulmonary disease
• ways to reduce alcohol consumption and quit 
smoking
• culturally appropriate information to maintain a 
healthy diet and keep physically active

Chronic Disease Program 

Our Chronic Disease Program, funded by 
Queensland Health since 2007, promotes healthy 
lifestyle choices and chronic disease self-
management in CALD communities. 

The program employs bilingual Multicultural 
Healthy Workers (MHWs) to conduct training, 
workshops and information sessions for CALD 
communities including people from Afghani, 
Arabic-speaking; Pacific and South Sea Islander; 
Vietnamese; Somali, Sudanese; and Sri-Lankan 
communities across six Hospital and Health 
Services in Queensland.

Living Well Multicultural - Multicultural 
Healthy Lifestyle Program

The LWM-MHLP initiative uses MHWs to deliver 
group-based, culturally specific sessions for 
CALD communities, focusing on five key areas; 
healthy eating, physical activity, chronic disease 
prevention and self-management, alcohol 
consumption and smoking cessation. 

Utilising a self-management framework and 
adult learning principles, this program facilitates 
behaviour-change, and promotes health and 
wellbeing by focusing on the delivery of an 
integrated healthy lifestyle program. 
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Program evaluation: 
In 2016, the program was externally evaluated by 
the School of Nutrition and Exercise Sciences at 
the Queensland University of Technology (QUT). 
The last interim evaluation report submitted by QUT 
in June 2016 found the following: 

• LWM-MHLP has been successful in identifying 
and engaging with the required groups of high-risk 
population to participate in the program
• increased participation of community members 
from different backgrounds
 - 71 percent of participants completed the  
 seven or more the eight sessions
• increased knowledge about risk factors 
associated with chronic disease
• decreased BMI and decrease in mean waist 
circumference
• decreased weight as a risk factor for chronic 
disease. 

• the LWM-MHLP from baseline to week eight 
was able to demonstrate statistically significant 
changes in physical activity and eating 
behaviours, including:
 - 66 percent of participants were classified  
 as active at the beginning the program  
 increasing to 88.7 percent at the end of the  
 program
  - fruit consumption (two serves a day)   
 increased from 52.9 percent to 71.8 percent
 - vegetable consumption (five or more serves  
 a day) increased from 5.3 percent to 19.7  
 percent
 - salty snack consumption decreased from  
 27.4 percent to 12.6 percent 
 - sweet snack consumption decreased from  
 23.9 percent to 7.4 percent
• participants reported that they liked learning 
about healthy food habits and exercises and 
enjoyed the social interaction that the sessions 
enabled
• the teaching team and the quality of the 
materials received very postive feedback
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In this financial year:
• 4 patients referred by GPs to the project
• 95 cases screened in the community
• 79 cases with medium and high risk of 
developing a chronic disease referred to GP
• 27 cases confirmed by GP that they had an 
undiagnosed chronic disease ((hypertension, 
hypercholesterolemia and /or diabetes)
• overall, participants’ knowledge increased in:
 - chronic disease – understanding the disease 
and the importance of food, nutrition and physical 
activity in regards to chronic disease prevention 
and self-management
 - nutrition – Australian dietary guidelines, food 
serves, label reading and recipe modification 
  - physical activity – Australian guidelines, 
Heathy Eating Active Living (HEAL) and home 
exercises 
 - alcohol and smoking 

Reference Group 

The Chronic Disease Program is supported 
by a reference group with representatives 
from Queensland Health, Heart Foundation 
Queensland, Careers Queensland, Brisbane North 
Primary Health Network, Brisbane South Primary 
Health Network, Metro South Health, The Good 
Start Program, Central Queensland Multicultural 
Association, Townsville Multicultural Support 
Group, YAMADI Mackay, Kidney Health Australia, 
Queensland University of Technology, Qld Network 
of Alcohol and Other Drug Agencies Ltd: Gold 
Coast Primary Health Network, Stroke Foundation, 
Diabetes Queensland, Consumer Representatives 
from target CALD communities. 

CALD Outreach Health Screening Project     

ECCQ implemented an evidence-based chronic 
disease prevention program focused on risk 
assessment, follow-ups and self-management 
support for CALD communities in Metro North 
Brisbane geographical area. 

The Outreach health project is funded by Brisbane 
North Primary Health Network to conduct a 
health screening for community members. If the 
screening results show a medium or high risk of 
developing a chronic disease the community 
member is referred to his/her General Practitioner 
(GP). 

ECCQ contacts the community member’s GP 
directly with the screening results and offers 
referral information to the community member to 
participate in three education sessions delivered 
by ECCQ’s Living Well Multicultural Program. The 
sessions are tailored to their identified risk factors 
and focus on healthy eating, chronic disease 
prevention and self-management and physical 
activity.

The project has been successful in identifying at-
risk people, providing timely referrals to their GPs 
and has been successful in providing culturally 
and linguistically appropriate education for the 
target population, helping them to understand 
prevention and self-management of chronic 
disease through healthier lifestyle choices. 
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World AIDS Day  

ECCQ’s Hepatitis, HIV/AIDS and Sexual Health Program partnered with the Honourable Cameron Dick MP, Minister for 
Health and Minister for Ambulance Services, State Member for Woodridge, to host a World AIDS Forum on 5 December 
2015 for approximately 200 CALD community leaders and members.

The forum included information stalls of service providers, cultural performances and important messages from speakers 
about HIV prevention, testing and treatment.

Minister Dick called for individuals to stand up and be leaders within their own communities in order to facilitate change.
“HIV is not something we should be afraid of. I want you to be leaders, whether you are a formal leader or not, I want you 
to be a leader in your community and help break-down those barriers of stigma and often, barriers of shame.”
 
World Hepatitis Day 

Minister Dick also partnered with ECCQ to host a World Hepatitis Day Forum for leaders and members of CALD 
communities and called on over 200 participants to be champions of liver health for their families and communities. 

“We can’t do it on our own, the government can’t do it, our nurses can’t do it, the health system can’t do it; we need 
community champions to work with us to make Queensland healthier.” 

Multicultural Healthy Lifestyle Program for Syrian and Iraqi refugees 

ECCQ Chronic Disease Program partnered with Loganlea TAFE to deliver two eight week Multicultural Healthy Lifestyle 
Program (in English and Arabic) for 32 newly arrived Iraqi and Syrian refugees.  

The program offers group-based, culturally specific sessions focusing of five key areas: healthy eating, physical activity, 
chronic disease prevention and self-management, alcohol consumption and smoking cessation. The program also 
includes a session on how to navigate the Australian Healthcare system, Medicare, how to access a GP, specialists and 
other service providers such as interpreters and ambulance and emergency services.  

The sessions and facilitators have been well received, well attended and participants have reported learning more about 
how to live a healthy lifestyle in their new country, including where to buy nutritious ingredients and how to incorporate 
daily exercise as well as how to access healthcare services.
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I am from Danao City in the Central Visayas region of the Philippines. Visayas is in the middle of 
the Philippines and I grew up on the small island. 

I moved to New Zealand in 2006 to be with my family because my son and I were the only ones 
left from my immediate family still living in the Philippines. 

My mother moved to New Zealand first in 2001 because she married a Kiwi. My younger brother 
and sister followed in 2002 and my older sister married a Swedish man so she moved to Sweden. 
My son Ken was 9 years old when we left the Philippines. His dad is still in the Philippines and 
remarried now. I was only 15 years old when I fell pregnant so we decided not to marry. 

We moved to Brisbane in 2012 after spending a year visiting my partner who lives here. We met in 
New Zealand and three months later he moved to Brisbane.  He is French Australian.

The transition from the Philippines to New Zealand and Australia was fine for me and my son 
because everyone learns English in the Philippines. There are different dialects in the Philippines, 
so my son can speak Visayan, but not Tagalog, the national language. So English is sometimes the 
common language.

I started my job at Diversicare just 6 months ago. I was hired in January to work on a rostering 
project. After the project finished I was hired on as the Rostering Officer. I just signed my contract 
this week! 

I enjoy working at Diversicare, like the name itself it’s incredibly diverse, which is very good 
for consumers from all backgrounds, but also for people who enjoy working in a diverse work 
environment. In New Zealand I worked in a clothing factory and the workers were from so many 
different cultural backgrounds and I found I really enjoyed that. 

ECCQ is a nice company to work for. At Diversicare, Jenni, the Operations Manager is so 
supportive and Vivienne, our General Manager is really nice and very warm. I like what I do 
because I get to talk to consumers and our home care workers and I’m a people person, so it’s 
perfect. 

In the Philippines I had studied secondary education, but I found I didn’t really like it. In the 
Philippines it’s hard to get a job; the unemployment rate is so high. My mom is a teacher and she 
thought it might be easier for her children to be teachers because she is already in the industry. 
But I am more interested in numbers. I wanted to do civil engineering or accounting, but it was 
expensive to go back to school and with my son it was hard to study. 

Since arriving in Australia I worked many different jobs including as a childcare worker and as 
a cook. I did an accounting course at TAFE where a German friend of mine told me about 
Diveriscare and that there was a job opening. I didn’t think I would work in the aged care sector, 
but I stayed because I am so happy working here. 

Fria Durano 
Diversicare Rostering Officer 
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Community Care

Diversicare provides high quality community 
based and coordinated in home care for older 
people, carers and people with disabilities 
to enable people to enjoy life and maintain 
independence, good health and wellbeing in their 
own homes and in the community. Diversicare 
offers culturally appropriate services in many 
languages.

Services

The Commonwealth Home Support 
Program (CHSP) 

CHSP is our largest service delivery program. 
Funded by the Commonwealth Government 
Department of Health (for our consumers aged 65 
and over) and by the Queensland Department of 
Communities, Child Safety and Disability Services 
for our consumers aged less than 65 years.  

CHSP assists older people who can mostly – but 
not completely – live and cope on their own, and 
don’t yet need higher levels of support at home. 

Our care services include:
• Personal care and grooming (bathing and 
dressing)
• Domestic assistance
• Meal preparation
• Continence management and advice
• Social support 
• Access to occupational therapy services
• In-home and centre based social respite services

Diversicare continues to actively grow the 
consumer base by outstanding reputation of 
delivering quality services, our high level marketing 
strategy, our committed attendance at local 
networks and community meetings, through 
forums and word of mouth.

The number of CHSP consumers has increased 
from 811 consumers in January 2016 to 1,011 as 
of 30 June 2016. This equates to an increase of 
almost 20 percent in consumer growth.  
 

Home Care Package Program (HCP)

Diversicare currently receives funding for 327 
packages (of various levels) in the Brisbane, 
Caboolture, Sunshine Coast, West Moreton and 
Logan River Valley regions.

Our Consumer Directed Care (CDC) model is 
based on the level of the individual package as 
assessed by the Aged Care Assessment Team 
(ACAT) and ongoing collaborative reassessment 
of each individual consumer as their lifestyle 
choices change.  

We support our consumers with tasks such 
as showering and hygiene support, dressing, 
medication management, wound management 
and skin care to name a few. This allows our 
consumers to live independently (as long as is 
possible) in their own homes with continuity of staff 
who are of the same or similar CALD background.  
We attempt to match, as best we can, the 
language and culture of the consumer to the 
Home Care Worker.

In the past year Diversicare Home Care Workers 
have all undergone professional development 
training, including CDC service delivery, to enable 
and support our consumers to understand their
choices and individual needs and goals. 

Premier Home Care Services 

We also offer Private Home Care Services. This 
means there are no waiting lists and consumers 
can access immediate services of their choice. 
This is a seven days a week service.
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Diversicare Transport Service 
Toowoomba (DTST)

The DTST Program, funded by DSS provides 
transport services to CHSP eligible Toowoomba 
residents over the age of 65 years, to maintain 
their independence and social well-being.  
Services include transport to local medical 
appointments, shopping and leisure and social 
activities. 

The service is provided by a team of dedicated 
volunteer drivers, who provide one way and 
return trips door to door. In this financial year, 11 
volunteers have provided transport services to 
over 679 Toowoomba residents and 111 are active 
CHSP consumers.

Community Visitors Scheme (CVS) 

CVS currently receives funding by DSS for 20 
residential places in Brisbane region and 15 
extended community places in the Darling Downs.  

Our dedicated volunteers visit residents who live in 
aged care homes or people who live in their own 
homes and receive a Home Care Package. They 
offer support to people who are socially isolated 
and whose quality of life would be improved by 
friendship and companionship.

Our volunteers or incredibly special and valued 
because they are often matched with a resident 
from the same or similar CALD background and 
often speak the same language as the person 
they are matched up with. In this financial year 18 
volunteers were matched up with people 65 and 
over in need of social connection and they made 
322 support visits. Volunteers are often from the 
same or similar CALD backgrounds.

Regional Assessment Services (RAS) 

Diversicare is a subcontractor to the RAS and 
conducts assessments for mainly CALD consumers 
in South East Queensland. We currently employ 12 
Home Support Assessors and one Lead Assessor. 
The Diversicare RAS team has been in place since 
the roll out of My Aged Care in June 2105 and we 
have just celebrated our one year anniversary. 

Throughout the year we have met many 
challenges as can be expected with the first year 
of such major change to the aged care system.  

Our dedicated RAS team conducts home 
support assessments for people living at home 
who may require some support. As a result of 
these comprehensive assessments we are able to 
process referrals for CHSP services as well as make 
further referrals for HCPs via the My Aged Care 
website.

Over the last year we have seen the Diversicare 
RAS team grow from nine to 12 Home Support 
Assessors covering areas throughout the Gold 
Coast, Logan River Valley, West Moreton region, 
Brisbane South, Brisbane North, Caboolture region 
and the Sunshine Coast.

The team offers a comprehensive assessment 
process in several languages with extensive 
cultural understanding that reduces barriers for 
many of our consumers.
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I am from Dhaka, Bangladesh. I speak Bengali and Hindi. I have a bachelor degree in 
communications and information technology from East West University in Dhaka and a diploma in 
business administration from TAFE NSW. 

My husband accepted a PhD scholarship to study chemistry at the University of New England in 
Armidale, NSW in 2006. My daughter and I followed six months later. 

We enjoyed living in Armidale and my daughter was thriving at school so after my husband 
finished his PhD we decided to apply for a skilled migrant visa and at the same time he was 
offered a job doing post-doctoral research. We are now citizens. 

My daughter Anisha Mujib, is now 13 years old and my son, Mahathir Mujib, was born in Australia 
and he is 7 years old. 

We raise our children with the influence of our two countries. We take all the good things here in 
Australia and all the good, positive things from our culture in Bangladesh. In Australia my children 
can receive the best education and they now have the freedom to do whatever they want to do 
in life. They have more opportunities here. 

It was very hard to leave Bangladesh, it’s still hard. We had everything there, family especially. But 
we want to put our children first and for them it’s better here. 

In Armidale people were so kind to us and it is a very multicultural environment. I have friends from 
all different backgrounds; wonderful people, people who are very rich inside. One of my closest 
friends is from Australian background and she is like my sister, like a soulmate. A couple of families 
we befriended in Armidale even came to visit us in Brisbane last month.
 
We came to Brisbane almost two years ago. My husband finished his contract at the university, so 
we came here for more opportunities. I have worked at Diversicare for almost one year. I worked 
for community based organisations in Armidale and I like to meet people, learn from people and 
give back. It feels natural to me and it’s a job that can also provide something for my soul. 

Bengali people are very welcoming and secular minded. Your skin colour, or your background 
doesn’t matter, how you were raised and your mentality is what matters. If we respect each other 
and value each other, then we can learn from each other. 

Suraya Akther
Administration Officer/ Receptionist  
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Resources

The MAS team also develop resources to assist 
service providers working with CALD communities 
including the Multicultural Calendar which 
features multicultural festivals and days of cultural 
and spiritual significance as well as personal stories 
from CALD consumers and the The Little Book 
of Cultural Tips, which equips staff with culturally 
appropriate best practice tips when providing 
health services.

The team contributed to over 40 information stalls 
across the state distributing thousands of culturally 
appropropriate Diversicare resources as well as 
MyAgedCare and National Disability Insurance 
Scheme information brochures.

Events 

The MAS team holds statewide signature events 
each year. The team identifies CALD specific 
needs within each geographical region and 
uses this information to deliver state wide expos, 
seminars, forums and displays.  

The Forever Young: Better Health and Wellbeing 
for our Culturally and Linguistically Diverse Older 
Australians forum was attended by 80 people 
and attracted interstate and international 
presenters. The forum enhanced professionals’ 
cultural awareness and provided support to 
service providers, community workers and health 
practitioners to deliver culturally inclusive services 
and improve the health and wellbeing of older 
people from CALD backgrounds. 

The World Day for Cultural Diversity events were 
held in the Sunshine Coast and Townsville in 
May. The events were an opportunity for service 
providers and CALD consumers to connect and 
network and share information. Approximately 350 
people attended the events. 

The Cultural Briefing Roadshow for Service 
Providers has been a resounding success with over 
300 attendees over the course of the sessions. 
The Roadshow was delivered in major cities such 
as Brisbane, Townsville, Gold Coast, Sunshine 
Coast and Cairns and also reached rural areas of 
Toowoomba, Warwick, and Rockhampton. The 
aim of the roadshow was to increase knowledge 
of various cultures and religions so that they are 
better equipped to provide culturally appropriate 
care to their consumers. 

Education and training  
 
The Multicultural Advisory Service (MAS) 

The Commonwealth Department of Health and 
the Department of Communities, Child Safety 
and Disability Services fund the state wide MAS 
program. The MAS offices are located in Cairns, 
Townsville, Sunshine Coast, Toowoomba, Brisbane 
and the Gold Coast and MAS can provide 
training services to all geographical regions in 
Queensland.  

Professional development is provided free to 
community care and aged care service providers 
seeking to enhance their delivery of culturally 
appropriate care to older people, people with 
a disability under 65 and their carers from CALD 
communities. 

Our workshops include strategies to identify, 
plan and develop multicultural and multilingual 
resources to support the provision of culturally 
appropriate services, and working with CALD 
consumers. 

This financial year, the MAS team delivered 50 
cross cultural training workshops to community 
care and age care providers across the state, 
including rural and remote regions. These 
workshops were attended by over 1,000 
participants.

We also provide information to CALD communities 
on culturally appropriate and relevant community 
care and aged care services. We deliver 
information sessions on how to access these 
services and provide individual support when 
accessing a service. We also advocate for 
services to meet the needs of CALD communities.
 
This financial year, the MAS team delivered 30 
culturally appropriate information sessions to 
seniors, people aged under 65 who have a 
disability, and carers from CALD backgrounds. 
These sessions were delivered across the state and 
over 2,000 participants attended.
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Partners in Culturally Appropriate Care 
(PICAC) Program

The PICAC program was created in response to 
evidence suggesting that older Australians from 
CALD backgrounds do not access aged care 
services as much as the rest of the population. 
Evidence also suggests that when access to 
services happen, it tends be at a ‘crisis’ point, 
when family and carers are no longer able to 
cope with the high level of needs of their loved 
ones. 

Funded by DSS, PICAC aims to help people from 
CALD communities to understand what services 
are available, how they can benefit from them 
and how to access them. The PICAC team also 
works with aged care providers by providing 
education, training and resources that will help 
them support clients for CALD backgrounds, 
and by connecting them directly with CALD 
communities. 

DSS funds one organisation in each state and 
territory to deliver the PICAC program and 
Diversicare has held this funding for the past 13 
years.

This financial year, the PICAC team delivered 49 
community information sessions and/or community 
events reaching 1,227 people from CALD 
backgrounds. The team also delivered 16 training 
sessions for aged care providers and 271 staff 
members attended. 

The focus for the 2015 – 2016 financial year has 
been on connections and PICAC has connected 
with over 20 different community groups through 
festivals, expos and information sessions. 

Our team organised talks around aged care 
services and related matters such as dementia, 
palliative care and continence issues. During 
these events PICAC also facilitated the interaction 
between mainstream service providers and CALD 
communities. The team also organised and hosted 
two network breakfasts (Brisbane North and 
Brisbane South) and 47 people attended. 

PICAC has also been very active in promoting 
the program through various networks including 
government agencies, general aged care service 
providers, multicultural aged care providers, 
community associations and organisations working 
in other sectors (i.e. mental health and disability) 
that provide services to people from CALD 
backgrounds. 
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I was born and raised in Cairo, Egypt. My father passed away when I was only six years old, so 
my siblings and I followed in my older brother’s footsteps and studied accounting at Ain Shams 
University. I have three brothers and three sisters, five older than me and younger than me. They 
are all accountants except one; he works for the Egyptian Airforce. 

While I was studying I worked for Le Meridien hotel in Cairo. I was able to do an apprenticeship 
with a well-known French chef. He was a good mentor and he helped me a lot. That was when I 
realised I enjoyed cooking. 

In Egypt you have to serve one year in the army. So after I graduated from university in 1988, I 
served my year and worked in the army’s special unit that protects the president. They ended up 
employing me after my year of service, so I worked there for four years. 

I wanted to travel, but because I worked for the government I knew too much. I had to wait for 
a few years after I left my job in the army before I was allowed to leave the country. During that 
time I worked in accounting and sales for a computer company and then I worked for a German 
tourist company. 

I came to Australia in 1992 with my wife at the time (who is Australian) and our three children 
were born here.  I went through the shock of being told I would have to go back to school for an 
accounting degree in Australia. I spent every day at the employment service office where I would 
apply for a job every day. No one would hire me as an accountant, but because I was married I 
wanted to be able to support my wife, so I decided to apply for a cooking job. 

I was fortunate to be hired by the Bellino family and I worked in their Italian restaurant by the 
Princess Alexander Hospital. I was too young and new to Australia to know who they were. They 
were very good to me; they gave me a chance to work even though I didn’t have experience in 
Australia. I worked in their restaurant until 1996, and then I worked at another Italian restaurant. 

As a chef, I worked long hours and would come home around 2am most nights. I wanted to 
spend more time with my children, because, for me, family comes first. I saw this chef job here at 
Berlasco Court and decided to apply in November 1997. I have been here a long time. I cook a 
lot of different kinds of food here, I really enjoy the challenge. I started doing some catering jobs 
on the side and officially started my catering company, MasterChef on Fire in 2005. 

At Berlasco Court, we have a summer and winter menu and each month we celebrate a 
different culture. Last month we celebrated the Polish culture and residents and staff helped 
prepare Polish food. We do a main hot meal and everyone brings cakes and sweets. We 
celebrate with music and dancing. The staff is very multicultural so everyone enjoys helping and 
sharing. 

I have worked in other nursing homes on the side as a head chef and I can assure you, the 
residents here are very spoiled, in the care they receive and the food. Each week we have live 
music, performances and many social activities. 

We have Greek residents who speak Arabic and we had a former Somalian Ambassador who I 
spoke Arabic and French with. I used to visit him in his room after I finished up work; he met the 
Egyptian president and led a very interesting life. He didn’t have any family here, so one day I 
took him to Moorooka for the day to see many of his friends.

Athena makes sure that residents feel at home and that they have every need met. They can ask 
for breakfast at midnight if they want. I have worked with Athena nearly 20 years. She oversees 
everything and misses nothing.

Mohey Labib
Head Chef of Berlasco Court Caring Centre
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Fee for service training 
Cultural Awareness in the Workplace 

This engaging and interactive training program 
was launched in May 2016 and addresses the 
specific cultural needs of professional organisations. 
From government departments through to private 
enterprise and corporate environments, this 
professional development addresses the various 
aspects of cultural awareness at both an individual 
and organisational level.

Since the launch we provided training to three 
organisations: Bravehearts, Gympie Women’s Health 
Service and Berlasco Court. 

Wellness, Reablement and Restorative Care  

The aim of this training is to support people 
who work in aged care to develop the skills 
and competencies to working within wellness, 
reablement and restorative care approaches. 
It also explores the new CHSP and the recent 
changes to the aged care system.

The training was rolled out this year internally and 
as of June 30, 16 senior staff members and 75 
Home Care Workers have completed training. 

Social Connections 

West End (WE) CONNECT Activities Centre

Every month, WE Connect Activities Centre provides 
social activities and services to approximately 
300 clients from diverse backgrounds including 
Dutch, Polish, Spanish, Vietnamese, Lao, Croatian, 
Yugoslav, Samoan, German, Chinese, Russian, 
Hungarian, Ukrainian, Romanian, Macedonian, 
Iranian, Slovenia and Latvian.  

While there are certain restrictions in the use of our 
activities centre, this is compensated by our regular 
outings to parks and gardens all over Brisbane. 
Venues visited over the past six months include New 
Farm Park, Roma street parklands, Mt Coo-tha and 
Rocks Riverside Park. 

In 2016 activities included bocce, Tai Chi, bowling, 
gardening, boat cruises, BBQs, knitting and art 
projects and picnics on the Brisbane riverbank and 
activities were enjoyed by all our consumer groups 
with a high participation rate. A favourite activity 
this year has been the dancing at the Carina 
Leagues Club; it is an entertaining and very popular 
day with all our groups. Our consumers also enjoyed 
the regular visits to museums and historical villages 
such as Caboolture Historical village, Newstead 
House and the Pine Rivers Museum. 
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We visited local community clubs, including the 
German club, Dutch club, Polish club and the 
Croatian Catholic Church at Salisbury, to ensure 
that our consumers keep in touch with their CALD 
backgrounds. Some visits included celebrating 
Christmas in July at the German Club, attending 
the King’s birthday celebrations at the Dutch Club 
and an Easter service at the Croatian Club. 

Our consumer groups receive high-quality, diverse, 
entertaining, relevant and culturally inclusive 
activities each month that allow them to engage 
with other people from the same culture and 
language background as well as meet many 
people from different backgrounds. 

In April 2016 WE Connect was successful in its 
application for a small grant ($6,700) from the 
Community Gambling Benefit Fund. The funds 
have been received and will be used to improve 
site access and allow for some much needed 
landscaping work to be carried out.

Ageing Well In A Foreign Land Research 
Project

Diversicare collaborated with academic 
researchers at the University of Queensland in 
successfully obtaining funding in the 2016 round 
of the Australian Research Council (ARC) Linkage 
grants scheme announced in Canberra on 9 May 
2016. 

The project Ageing Well In A Foreign Land: Identity, 
Social Connectedness and Well-Being aims to 
enhance well-being among CALD people ageing 
in a foreign land, by understanding the best 
approaches to connect them.  

It has been identified that older people from 
diverse cultural backgrounds are socially isolated 
as they age in a foreign land. This project will use 
a mixed methods approach to identify the factors 
that contribute to social isolation and low well-
being; understand when and how engagement in 
ethno cultural and multicultural activities enhances 
social connectedness and wellbeing; and evaluate 
and determine key principles underlying effective 
identity-based interventions. 

The intended outcome of the project is a new 
policy model that builds Australia’s care capacity 
in tandem with its diverse ageing population.
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Helen was born on the 17th of August 1921 in Smyrna, Greece, now Izmir, Turkey. 

Helen was only three years old when her parents perished while trying to flee Turkey with their 
children during the Greco-Turkish War. Helen, her brother George and her two sisters Maritsa (my 
mother) and Dorothy all survived and were taken by family members to Kythira, an island of the 
south-eastern tip of the Greek Peloponnese peninsula, to be brought up by their grandmother. 
They all eventually moved to Athens, where they lived during WWII.

By 1952, Helen and her siblings had all emigrated to Australia. Helen arrived when she was 31 
years old. She married a Greek Australian WWII veteran named Nicholas Andronicus. He had a 
business in Sydney which manufactured and sold confectionery. They had two children, Michael 
and Irene. 

When Michael and Irene were still in primary school Nicholas passed away. Helen brought up the 
children by herself as a widow and worked at times as a dressmaker. 

Tragically, Helen had to endure the loss of both her children. Michael passed away from a 
medical condition and two years later Irene was diagnosed with a brain tumour and she didn’t 
make it off the operating table. They were both unmarried and in their 40s. 

This absolutely devastated Helen. She then lived on her own and I have kept in close touch with 
her for the past 20+ years. I phoned regularly and flew from Brisbane to Sydney to visit her every 
three to six months.

In 2014, Helen started to develop dementia. She was living on her own, doing her own cooking 
and cleaning without any assistance, except from her close girlfriend. It became apparent that 
Helen’s dementia made it hard for her to live on her own, so in February 2015, my brother and I 
drove to Sydney and took her on a holiday to Brisbane and she has never left Queensland. 

We moved her into Berlasco Court with great assistance from Athena, the General Manager. 
Helen has flourished here and since arriving she has put on 5-6 kg. She receives extremely good 
care from the staff and most of them, I believe, love her dearly.

Losing her children and the immense pain it caused her may have brought on the dementia, but 
now, ironically, she doesn’t seem to remember that time in her life and she seems very content 
and happy. She is now back in her early childhood or as a young woman in Athens. She has 
reverted to speaking Greek only. She can understand English still, but doesn’t use it. Her birthday 
was last week, she is 95 years old and the way she’s going, she’s going to make it to 100. 

Helen Andronicus
Berlasco Court resident 
By James Kalokerinos, Helen’s nephew
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Residential Care 
Berlasco Court Caring Centre is a fully accredited 
residential aged care facility committed to a high 
standard of nursing care for residents from a wide 
range of cultural backgrounds. Berlasco Court 
was purchased by ECCQ in 1988 to fulfil its vision of 
providing culturally inclusive care for people from 
CALD backgrounds. 

Services
This year Berlasco Court continued to offer a high 
standard of care to 60 residents from 22 different 
cultural backgrounds. Our staff members come 
from 30 different cultural backgrounds and speak 
over 56 languages. This allows some of our residents 
to communicate in the language of their country of 
birth when needed. Registered nurses are on duty 
24 hours a day to ensure a high quality of care.

Allied Health Professionals such as a speech 
pathologist, occupational therapist, and a dietician 
are provided when necessary and physiotherapy 
and podiatry are offered on a seasonal basis at 
no cost. We provide information on other health 
services such as optometry, hearing and oral 
services to residents, relatives and carers.

Medications and other pharmaceutical products 
continue to be supplied to Berlasco Court by Epic 
Pharmacy Services.

Leisure and Lifestyle Program

Residents at Berlasco Court continue to enjoy the 
Leisure and Lifestyle Program.

This program includes the services of a number 
of diversional therapists/assistants. They provide 
quality leisure and recreational experiences that 
contribute greatly to the wellbeing of residents.

This year they organised a wide range of activities 
including exercises, arts & crafts, card games, 
music, concerts and outings to suit the interests and 
abilities of the residents.

The facility also hosts large numbers of students 
from a variety of TAFEs, universities and other 
registered training organisations. Students 
undertake work experience through facilitated 
programs, others such as the social work students 
from QUT commit to volunteering for a number of 
weeks on a part time basis to assist with the Leisure 
and Lifestyle Program. Students from the University 
of Queensland studying physiotherapy and speech 
herapy also undertake volunteer work.  
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Quality improvement

Work continued this year with general renovations 
and room extensions. This has contributed greatly 
to the general environment as well as the overall 
wellbeing and satisfaction of residents.

In March 2016, it was announced that ECCQ was 
successful in the 2015 Aged Care Approvals Round 
(ACAR) for a $10 million capital grant to rebuild 
Berlasco Court to add an additional 48 new places, 
which will, upon completion, increase the number 
of residents from 60 to 108.

There have been extensive discussions and 
consultations in relation the new building project. 
Project planning will commence next year.  

Education and professional development

Communication and language support is offered 
to staff by a specialist English language teacher. 
She works with individual sessions on subjects such 
as general communication, difficult conversations, 
conflict resolution and complaints handling. 

All staff members undertake education and 
training for one hour every fortnight on topics such 
as dementia and challenging behaviour as part of 
their rostered hours. 

All staff completed mandatory annual training on 
topics such as fire and emergency evacuation 
updates, infection control, disaster management 
and safe food handling. All Clinical Managers 
completed an annual day-long workshop to 
ensure professional development and training is 
current. 
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Ralph has spent much of his life teaching and writing about peace and conflict studies, 
nonviolent political action and related topics. He started teaching at the University of Queensland 
in 1964 and established the UQ’s Peace and Conflict Studies Program in 1989. In 1997 he 
became the Director of the Spark M. Matsunaga Institute for Peace and Conflict Resolution at 
the University of Hawaii, Honolulu where he was also a professor. In 2004 he returned to UQ as an 
adjunct professor. In 1977, he founded the academic journal, Social Alternatives; it’s still in print 
today. 

Ralph was born in Allentown, Pennsylvania, USA in 1929. He went to Harvard at age 16 on a 
scholarship and graduated with an economics degree. He was drafted into the army during the 
Korean War and was stationed in Germany. That had a profound effect on him, which would 
lead to his interest in the peace movement.
  
He decided to make a life changing move in 1962, when he emigrated to Sydney. He got a 
job teaching English literature and history at Drummoyne Boys School from 1962 to 1964. He 
particularly enjoyed teaching a group of boys from disadvantaged backgrounds and used 
theatre as a tool to help them express themselves. He received a letter from a former student 
many years later thanking him for turning his life around.
   
He loved teaching and keeps in touch with many of his students, some of whom work for NGOs 
around the world and the United Nations. 

“Many of my students were able to excel and go on to do great things, they were wonderful to 
have as students.”

Ralph Summy 
Berlasco Court resident
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The 2015-2016 Annual Report consists of consolidated accounts and a segmented 
breakdown to show the performances of the three divisions that make up ECCQ Ltd: 
Berlasco Court, Diversicare and ECCQ Multicultural Services. The Report is done in this 
way in the interests of transparency to the wider community.

It has been a very busy year. A new Strategic Plan 2016-2020 has been developed 
after an intensive three day workshop. The Board of Directors have appointed a CEO 
to oversee the whole organisation. 

After some lean years, funding has increased. We have received a capital grant of $10 
million from the Australian Government Department of Health, Aged Care Approval 
Rounds for the upgrade of Berlasco Court.

Our programmes are expanding and I can see an extremely busy couple of years for 
the Board and staff of ECCQ.

ECCQ plays an important role in the community and with strong leadership, will 
continue to do so for many years to come.

The auditors have once again stated that ECCQ does not have any material credit 
risk. They also stated that: no matters of significance have arisen, which will significantly 
affect the operation of ECCQ in future financial years; ECCQ continues to experience 
growth in residential and community care; changes in government have resulted in a 
number of changes in funding; and, there has been no significant change in the state 
of affairs.

We would like to acknowledge and thank the government departments and agencies 
from federal, state and local levels for their continued support and cooperation.
I would like to thank my fellow directors and ECCQ staff for their ongoing support and 
commitment.

Finance, Audit & Risk 
Committee Report
Alex Daniloff
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Director’s Report 
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Director’s Report 
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Auditor’s Independence Declaration
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Statement of Comprehensive Income
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Statement of Financial Position
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Statement of Changes in Equity
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Statement of Cash Flows
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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Notes to the Financial Statements



WWW.ECCQ.COM.AU ECCQ AnnUAl REpORt - 2015/2016 83

Notes to the Financial Statements
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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